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INDEPENDENT AUDITOWS REPORT 

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Aldermen and 
The Honorable Robert Amacker, Jr., Mayor 

Town of Lake Providence 
Lake Providence, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, and each major fund, of the Town of Lake Providence, Louisiana, (the Town), as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's 
basic fmancial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
fmancial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund, of the Town, 
as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof, 
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; 
the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide, issued by the Louisiana 
Legislative Auditor. Our responsibilities under those standards and the Guide are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the Town and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the fmancial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town's ability to continue as a going concern 
for twelve months beyond the flnancial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise 
substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Melissa Bosch, CPA (318) 475-1987 • Michael Statham, CPA (318) 355-9943 
Post Office Box 2377, Ruston, Louisiana 71273-2377 



Town of Lake Providence 
Independem Auditor's Report 
June 30, 2024 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that. individually or in the aggregate. they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 
the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, 
we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error, 
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circtunstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Town's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accotuning 
estimates made by management. as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment. there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Town's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain intenial control-related matters that we identified during 
the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison 
information (page 32) be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such infonnation is the responsibility 
of management and. although not a part of the basic financial statements. is required by the Govenunental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational. economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries. the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Management has omitted Management's Discussion and Analysis; the Schedule of Employer's Proportionate Share of 
Net Pension Liability; and the Schedule of Contributions that accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements. is required by the Govenimental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational. economic. or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing 
information. 
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Town of Lake Providence 
Independent Auditor's Report 
June 30, 2024 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the fmancial statements that collectively comprise the 
Town's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head; the 
Schedule of Compensation to Town Council; and the Justice Funding Schedule — Collecting/Disbursing Entity, are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic fmancial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
fmancial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Compensation, 
Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head; the Schedule of Compensation to Town Council; and the Justice Funding 
Schedule — Collecting/Disbursing Entity are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic fmancial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 30, 2024, on our 
consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely 
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Town's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

BOSCH & STATHAM, LLC 

Bosch & Statham, ffC 

Ruston, Louisiana 

December 30, 2024 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 

    

Primary Government 

  

Governmental Business-type 

 

ASSETS Activities Activities Total 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 777,623 $ 635,170 $ 1,412,793 
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 85,936 36,121 122,057 
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles 37,260 228,714 265,974 
Internal balances 77,000 (77,000) 

 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization 3,610,450 5,243,073 8,853,523 
TOTAL ASSETS 4,588,269 6,066,078 10,654,347 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

   

Pension related 36,345 33,755 70,100 

LIABILITIES 

   

Current liabilities: 

   

Accounts, salaries and other payables 63,318 86,834 150,152 
Deposits due others 300 156,038 156,338 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

   

Due within one year 109,931 138,848 248,779 
Due in more than one year 332,274 2,244,547 2,576,821 
Net pension liability 141,277 131,205 272,482 

TOTAL LIABILIIIES 647,100 2,757,472 3,404,572 

DEFERRED INFLOWS 

   

Pension related 49 46 95 
Unearned grant income 60,000 

 

60,000 
60,049 46 60,095 TOTAL DEFFERED INFLOWS 

NET POSITION 

   

Net investment in capital assets 3,185,414 2,867,726 6,053,140 
Restricted net position 747,368 604,857 1,352,225 
Unrestricted net position (15,317) (130,268) (145,585) 
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 3,917,465 $ 3,342,315 $ 7,259,780 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 

LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

      

PROGRAM REVENUES 

 

NET (EXPENSES) REVENUES AND 

 

OPERATING CAPITAL CHANGES IN NET ASSEIS 

 

CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND GOVERNMENTAL BUSINFSS-TYPE 

 

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUITONS CONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL 

Governmental activities: 

     

General government $ 414,325 $ 146,828 $ 1,387 $ $ (266,110) 

 

(266,110) 

Public safety 590,212 57,302 49,686 

 

(483,224) 

 

(483,224) 

Highways and streets 450,963 20,000 (430,963) 

 

(430,963) 

Utilities 174,521 3,996 

 

(170,525) 

 

(170,525) 

Cemeteries 850 

 

(850) 

 

(850) 

Health 95 27,255 

 

27,160 

 

27,160 

Recreation 36,797 

 

(36,797) 

 

(36,797) 

Interest expense 18,176 

 

(18,176) 

 

(18,176) 

Total governmental activities 1,685,939 204,130 82,324 20,000 (1,379,485) 

 

(1,379,485) 

Business-type activities: 

     

General government 187,560 4,037 

  

(183,523) (183,523) 

Highways and streets 62,899 

  

62,899 62,899 

Sanitation 769,220 560,790 

  

(208,430) (208,430) 

Utilities 676,010 670,087 1,089 205,888 

 

201,054 201,054 

Interest expense 102,800 

  

(102,800) (102,800) 

Total business-type activities 1,735,590 1297,813 1,089 205,888 

 

(230,800) (230,800) 

Total primary government S 3,421,529 S 1,501,943 S 83,413 S 225,888 (1,379,485) (230,800) (1,610,285) 

 

General revenues: 

     

Property taxes 

 

251,168 

 

251,168 

 

Sales and use taxes 

 

319,278 319,147 638,425 

 

Other taxes, pemliies and interest 

 

85,393 

 

85,393 

 

Unrestricted investment earnings 

 

11,711 10,627 22,338 

 

Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 

 

15,075 48,338 63,413 

 

Other 

 

86,361 50,391 136,752 

 

Transfers 

 

344,000 (344,000) 

  

Total general revenues and transfers 

 

1,112,986 84,503 1,197,489 

 

Change in net position 

 

(266,499) (146,297) (412,796) 

 

Net position at beginning of year, restated 

 

4,183,964 3,488,612 7,672,576 

 

Net position at end of year 

 

$ 3,917,465 $ 3,342,315 $ 7,259,780 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
BALANCE SHEET 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 

      

Ame ric an 

 

Total 

  

Rescue Capital Governmental 
ASSETS General Plan Project Funds 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 768,621 $ 3,286 $ 5,716 $ 777,623 
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 85,936 - - 85,936 
Receivables 37,260 - - 37,260 
Due from other funds 77,000 - - 77,000 
TOTAL ASSETS $ 968,817 $ 3,286 $ 5,716 $ 977,819 

 

BALANCES 

   

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND 
Liabilities: 

    

Accounts, salaries, and other current payables $ 59,538 $ - 3,780

 

$ 63,318 
Deposits 300 - 

 

300 
Total liabilities 59,838 - 3,780 63,618 

Deferred inflows: 

    

Deferred revenue - unavailable 60,000 

  

60,000 

Fund bahnc es: 

    

Restricted 548,658 3,286 1,936 553,880 
Unassigned 300,321 - - 300,321 

Total fund bahnces 848,979 3,286 1,936 854,201 
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, 

    

AND FUND BALANCES $ 968,817 $ 3,286 $ 5,716 $ 977,819 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS' BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSHION 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 

Amounts reported for governmental activities 
in the statement of net position are different because: 

Total fund balances $ 854,201 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, 
therefore, are deferred in the funds. 3,610,450 

Deferred outflows - pension related 36,345 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current 

period and therefore are not reported in the funds: 

General obligations payable (442,205) 
Net pension liability (141,277) 

Deferred inflows - pension related (49) 

Net position of governmental activities $ 3,917,465 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 

LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

 

Ge ne ral 

Ame rican 

Re s cue 
Plan 

Capital 
Pro je ct 

Total 

Gove rnme ntal 
Funds 

Revenues: 

Taxes: 

    

Ad valorem $ 251,168 $ $ - $ 251,168 

Sales and use 319,278 

 

- 319,278 

Other taxes 

Franchise taxes 85,393 

 

- 85,393 

Licenses and permits 129,203 

 

- 129,203 

Intergovernmental funds: 

    

State govelninent grants 52,796 

 

- 52,796 

State government shared revenue 22,273 

 

- 22,273 

State government payments in lieu 27,255 

 

- 27,255 

Charges for services 357 

 

- 357 

Fines and forfeitures 57,302 

 

- 57,302 

Investment earnings 11,268 443 - 11,711 

Rents and royalties 17,268 

 

- 17,268 

Other revenues 46,942 

 

- 46,942 

Total revenues 1,020,503 443 - 1,020,946 

Expenditures: 

    

Current: 

    

General goveli nent 357,859 

 

- 357,859 

Public safety 580,587 

 

- 580,587 

Highways and streets 289,576 

 

- 289,576 

Utilities - 174,521 - 174,521 

Cemeteries 850 

 

- 850 

Health and welfare 95 

 

- 95 

Culture and recreation 17,865 

 

- 17,865 

Debt service 83,324 

 

- 83,324 

Capital outlay 159,689 

 

45,190 204,879 

Total expenditures 1,489,845 174,521 45,190 1,709,556 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures (469,342) (174,078) (45,190) (688,610) 

Other sources (uses): 

    

Operating transfers in 344,000 

 

25,780 369,780 

Proceeds of general capital asset dispositions 15,075 

 

- 15,075 

General long-term debt issued 134,092 

 

- 134,092 

Operating transfers out (25,780) 

 

- (25,780) 

Total other sources (uses) 467,387 

 

25,780 493,167 

Net change in fund balances (1,955) (174,078) (19,410) (195,443) 

Fund balances at 

beginning of year, restated 850,934 177,364 21,346 1,049,644 

Fund balance s at e nd of ye ar $ 848,979 $ 3,286 $ 1,936 $ 854,201 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS' STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

Amounts reported for governmental activities 
in the statement of net position are different because: 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (195,443) 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
depreciation expense exceeded capital outlays in the current period. 

Capital outlay 204,879 
Depreciation and amortization expense (208,940) 
Loss on sale of capital assets 

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial 
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term 
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither 
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds 
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when 
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the 
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the 
treatment of long-term debt and related items. 

Proceeds from leases (134,092) 
Payments on long-term debt 61,302 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. 

Change in compensated absences payable (6,409) 
Change in net pension liability and deferred inflows and outflows (27,215) 
Town's share of nonemployer contributions to the retirement systems 39,419  

Change in net position of governmental activities S (266,499) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

PROPRIETARY FUND - ENTERPRISE FUND - UTILITY FUND 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted $ 635,170 
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 36,121 
Receivables 228,714 

Total current assets 900,005 
Noncurrent assets: 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 5,243,073 
TOTAL ASSETS 6,143,078 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 
Deferred outflows - pension related 33,755 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts, salaries, and other current payables 86,834 
Due to other funds 77,000 
Deposits 156,038 

Total current liabilities 319,872 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Noncurrent liabilities - due within one year 138,848 
Noncurrent liabilities - due in more than one year 2,244,547 
Net pension obligation 131,205 

Total noncurrent liabilities 2,514,600 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,834,472 

DEFERRED INFLOWS 
Deferred inflows - pension related 46 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 2,867,726 
Restricted net position 604,857 
Unrestricted net position (130,268)  
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 3,342,315  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

PROPRIETARY FUND - ENTERPRISE FUND - UTILITY FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services: 

General government $ 4,037 
Highways & streets 62,899 
Sanitation 560,790 
Utilities 670,087 

Other revenues 50,391 
Total operating revenues 1,348,204 

Operating expenses: 
General government: 

Personal services 97,343 
Operating services 63,546 
Materials and supplies 1,327 
Travel and other charges 25,344 

Sanitation: 
Personal services 138,170 
Operating services 481,972 
Materials and supplies 31,959 
Depreciation 117,119 

Utilities - water: 
Personal services 92,280 
Operating services 271,079 
Materials and supplies 127,153 
Depreciation 185,498 

Total operating expenses 1,632,790 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Taxes: 

Sales and use 
Intergovernmental revenues: 

Federal government grants 
State government grants 

Investment earnings 
Interest expense 

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) 

(284,586) 

319,147 

205,888 
1,089 

10,627 
(102,800) 
433,951   

Income (loss) before proceeds from insurance and transfers 149,365 

Proceeds from insurance 
Interfund transfers out 
Total transfers 

48,338 
(344,000) 
(295,662) 

Change in net postion 
Net postion at beginning of year, restated 
Net postion at end of year 

(146,297) 
3,488,612 

S 3,342,315   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 

LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

PROPRIETARY FUND - ENTERPRISE FUND - UTILITY FUND 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Receipts from customers and users $ 1,347,888 

Payments to suppliers (909,104) 

Payments to employees (294,764) 

Other receipts 23,403  

Net cash provided by operating activities 167,423 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 

Transfer to other funds (344,000) 

Receipts from sales taxes 326,805 

Subsidy from grants 1,089  

Net cash provided by noncapital and related financing activities (16,106) 

Cash flows from capital and related fmancing activities: 

Subsidy from grants 196,151 

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (270,805) 

Principal paid on capital debt (240,745) 

Interest paid on capital debt (102,800) 

Proceeds from insurance 48,338  

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (369,861) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Interest received 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

(including amounts in restricted accounts) 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

(including amounts in restricted accounts) 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to 

cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization expense 

Pension related income and expense 

(Increase) decrease in receivables 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 

Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 

Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable 

Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities: 

Borrowing under capital lease 

10,627 

10,627 

(207,917) 

879,208 

671,291 

$ (284,586) 

302,617 

24,207 

(20,146) 

97,957 

48,570 

2,220 

(3,416) 

452,009 

167,423 

S 108,773 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Town of Lake Providence, Louisiana, (the Town) was incorporated in 1848. In L904, the Town began 
operating under the provisions of the "Lawrason Act" (Louisiana Revised Statutes (R.S.) 33:321-481) of the 
constitution of the State of Louisiana. The Town is located in the parish of East Carroll and, as of 2020, had 
a population of 3,587. The Town operates under a "Board of Aldermen-Mayor" form of government and, as 
permitted under the act, provides police protection, fire protection, roads, streets and sidewalks; sponsorship 
of federal and state supported programs, water and sewer utilities and other necessary public services. 

The accompanyirw basic financial statements of the Town of Lake Providence have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB). 

The basic financial statements present the financial position and results of operations of the various funds by 
the Town and the cash flows of the proprietary funds as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

Reportin2 Entitv  
The Town reporting entity consists of the various departments and activities that are within the control and 
authority of the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen. 

As required by GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended, a legally separate 
entity is considered a component unit of the Town if at least one of the following criteria is met: 

• The Town appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and is either able to 
impose its will on the organization or there is a potential financial benefit/burden to the Town. 

• The entity is fiscally dependent on the Town. 
• The nature and significance of the relationship between the Town and the entity is such that 

exclusion would cause the financial staternents of the Town to be misleading or incomplete. 

Under provisions of this Statement, the Town is considered a primary government since it is a special purpose 
government that has a separately elected governirw body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of 
other state or local governments. The Town has no component units. 

Basis of Presentation  
The basic financial statements include the govenunent-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, 
and the notes to the basic financial statements. 

The government-wide financial statements consist of a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of 
Activities. These statements are prepared using the econornic resources rneasurernent focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Major revenues such as ad valorem taxes and sales taxes are assessed, collected and 
susceptible to accrual. Assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses of the government are reported in the 
financial statements. The statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of 
the Town by reporting each in a separate column. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Basis of Presentation (Continued)  
All capital (long-lived) assets, receivables, and long-term obligations are reported in the Statement of Net Position. 
The Statement of Activities reports revenues and expenses in a format that allows the reader to focus on the net 
cost of each function of the Town. Both the gross and net cost per function, which is otherwise being supported 
by general government revenues, is compared to the revenues generated directly by the function. In the Statement 
of Activities, gross expenses, including depreciation, are reduced by related program revenues, which are 
comprised of charges for services, operating grants, and capital grants. Direct and indirect expenses are reported 
as program expenses for individual functions and activities. The program revenues must be directly associated 
with the function or a business-type activity. The types of transactions included in program revenues are licenses 
and permits, fines, lease income, court costs, charges for mowing, and charges for gravesites. The operating grants 
include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants, while the capital grants column 
reflects capital-specific grants. 

The fund financial statements report the Town as a collection of major and nonmajor funds presented on separate 
schedules by fund category — governmental, proprietaiy, and fiduciaiy funds. 

• The governmental fund statements include a balance sheet and a statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances, with one column for the general fund, one for each of the other major funds, 
and one column combining all the nonmajor governmental funds. The Town does not have any nonmajor 
governmental funds. The statements are prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which 
they become measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period, generally considered 
sixty days after the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which 
the fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except for unmatured interest payments on general long-term 
liabilities which are recognized when due. 

• The proprietary fund statements include a statement of net position; a statement of revenues, expenses, 
and changes in fund net position; and a statement of cash flows. Each statement has a column for each 
major enterprise fund. The Town does not have any nonmajor proprietary funds or internal service funds. 
The proprietary fund statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting in order to make a determination of net income, financial position, and cash 
flows. 

• Although the financial statements presented in each of these three schedules contain - total" columns, they 
merely combine rather than consolidate the funds. Hence, interfund transactions that generate receivables 
and payables or transfers from one fund to another are not eliminated. 

Major fimds are those whose revenues, expenditures/expenses, assets and deferred outflows, or liabilities and 
deferred inflows are at least ten percent of the total for their fund category' or type (governmental or enterprise) 
and at least five percent of the corresponding element total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Basis of Presentation (Continued)  
The data on the face of the three sets of financial statements must be accornpanied by certain disclosures to ensure 
accurate information is presented in the form of a single set of notes to the basic financial statements. 

The major governmental funds of the Town are the General Fund, the Arnerican Rescue Plan Fund, and the Capital 
Projects Fund. 

The General Fund is the Town's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the 
general govermnent, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The American Rescue Plan Fund accounts for funds received under the federal American Rescue Plan 
Act. 

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition or construction of rnajor capital facilities 
(other than those financed by proprietary funds). 

The Town reports one major enterprise fund, the Utility Enterprise Fund which accounts for the activities of the 
water, sewer, sanitation and street lighting departments. 

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position, Equity, or Net Fund Balances 

Cash and Invesnnents 

The Town Clerk pools those cash resources for which she is responsible and invests thern accordingly. For 
purposes of the financial statements, including the Statement of Cash Flows, the Town considers all highly liquid 
investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash 
equivalents. 

Investments are reported at fair value in accordance with GASB Staternent No. 31, Accounting and Financial 

ReporiinglOr Ceriain Invesonenis and fOr External Invesoneni Pools. Cash and investment earnings are recorded 
in the Fund that holds the investment. 

Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funds that is outstanding at the end the fiscal year is referred to as either "due to or from other 
funds" ( i.e., the current portion of interfiind loans) or "advances to/from other funds" ( i.e., the non-current portion 
of interfimd loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governtnental activities and business-type 
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as Internal balances." A11 internal balances 
are eliminated in the total primary government column. Receivables include all amounts susceptible to accrual 
that have not been collected at June 30, but will be collected soon enough after the end of the year to pay liabilities 
of that year. They include all amounts earned, but not collected at June 30. Receivables (net of any uncollectible 
ainounts) and payables are reported on separate lines. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows aud Net Position, Equity, or Net Fund Balances  
Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as ofJanuary 1. Taxes are levied by the Town in Septernber 
or October, are actually billed on October 1, and are mailed to the taxpayers in November. Billed taxes becorne 
delinquent on January 1 of the following year. Revenues from ad valorem taxes are budgeted in the year they are 
billed. The Town bills and collects its own property taxes using the assessed value determined by the assessor of 
East Carroll Parish and approved by the State of Louisiana Tax Cornrnission. However, taxes that are received 
after more than 60 days after year end, will be recorded as deferred revenue at year end as they are not available. 
For the year ended June 30, 2024, taxes of 18.38 mills were levied on property with assessed valuations totaling 
S13,380,376, as follows: 

 

Authorized Levied Expiration 

 

Millage Millage Date 

General 11.50 12.17 Indefinite 

Fire 3.26 3.45 2027 

Police 2.61 2.76 1 027 

The following are the principal taxpayers and related property tax revenue for the Town: 

Taxpayer 

A.ssessed 

Valuation 

% of Total 
A.ssessed 

Valuation 

Ad Valorem Tax 
Revenue for 

Municipality 
Delta Bank $ 1,274,982 10% $ 23,434 
Lausing Louisiana, LLC 1,017,156 8% 18,695 

Entergy Louisiana, Inc. 1,589,430 12% 12,336 
Nutrien AG Solutions, hic. 1,588,259 12% 9,484 

Atmos Energy Corporation 499,690 4% 7,188 
Capital One, N.A. 371,697 3% 6,832 
Lakeshore Family Homes, LP 302,804 2% 5,566 

Jongs, Inc. 239,495 1 % 4,402 
Bell South Telecommunications 221,860 2% 1,418 
Carroll Oil, Inc. 74,255 1% 1,365 

Totals $ 7,179,628 56% $ 90,720 

Voters of the Town authorized a one percent sales and use tax at a special election held November 3, 1998. On 
July 19, 2008, the tax was approved for an additional ten years from January 1, 2009. On April 28, 2018, the tax 
was approved for an additional ten years frorn January 1, 2019. The tax is to be used for the purpose of 
constructing, acquiring, irnproving, extending, operating, and/or rnaintaining the Town's sewer system and water 
works facilities and improvements. An additional one percent sales and use tax was approved by the voters on 
January 15, 2005, for a period of ten years. On November 4, 2014, voters renewed the tax for an additional ten 
years cornrnencirw March 31, 2015. On November 5, 2024, voters renewed the tax for an additional ten years 
commencing March 31, 2025. The tax is to be used for the purpose of improvement, maintenance, andlor repair 
of public streets within the corporate limits of the Town. Sales taxes are recognized when the underlying exchange 
transaction occurs, and the resources are available. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, Equity, or Net Fund Balances 
(Continued)  

Inventories and Prepaid Items 
Inventories consisting of office supplies and water and sewer plant supplies held for consumption are valued using 
the average cost method. The consumption method is used for financial reporting. Certain payments reflect costs 
applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund 
financial statements. 

Restricted Assets 
Restricted assets represent primarily cash and investments held separately and restricted according to bond 
indenture agreements. Cash held for water customer meter deposits is also reported as restricted. 

('apital Assets 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastnicture assets, are reported capital in the 
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the governinent-wide financial stateinents. Capital 
assets are recorded as expenditures in each fund and capitalized at the government-wide level; assets of enterprise 
funds are reported in the fund. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
assets or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. The capitalization threshold is $1,000. For reporting 
purposes, the Town defines capital assets as follows: 

• Land is an inexhaustible asset with no capitalization threshold and an unlimited useful life; therefore, it is 
not depreciated. 

• Buildings are permanent structures erected above ground, while improvements are major repairs, 
renovations, or additions that increase the future service potential of the asset. Leasehold improvernents 
are improvements made by the lessee to leased property. They are depreciated principally using the 
straight-line method with an estirnated useful life typically of 50 years for structures and improvements 
and 20 years for depreciable land improvements. Leasehold improvements are depreciated using the 
straight-line method with an estimated useful life depending on the term of the lease. Construction-in-
progress is not depreciated. 

• Movable property (furniture, equipment, and vehicles) consists of assets that are not fixed or stationary in 
nature. The straight-line method of depreciation is used, which divides the historical cost by the estimated 
useful life of the asset, generally 5 to 10 years. 

• Infrastructure assets include tunnels, drainage systems, water and sewer systems, dams, and lighting 
systems. Infrastructure is depreciated using the straight-line method with an estimated useful life of 20 to 
4() years. 

• Purchased computer software is depreciated using the straight-line inethod over an estimated useful life 
of 3 years. 

• Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

Compensated absences 
An employee must have been in the service of the Town for at least one year to be eligible for annual leave. 
Employees' vacations are determined by length of service with the Town. Employees with up to three years of 
service eam one week of vacation. Employees with more than three years of service earn two weeks of vacation. 
Employees are not paid for accumulated vacation leave upon separation, termination, retirement, or death. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, Equity, or Net Fund Balances 
(Continued)  

Each employee eanis sick leave at the rate of one and one-quarter day for each month worked up to a maximum 
of fifteen days. If no sick leave is used during a year, the employee may carry forward six days to the next year. 
If any sick leave is used during the year, the employee may carry forward half of the leave earned for the year. 
The total accumulated balance cannot exceed sixty days. At separation, termination, retirement, or death, an 
employee may only be paid for the arnount earned during the current year. 

Long-Term Obligations 
In the governrnent-wide financial staternents, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities. In the fund financial statements, proprietary fund long-term obligations 
are reported as liabilities in the proprietary fund type statement of net position. Individual funds have been used 
to liquidate other lorw-term liabilities such as compensated absences, claims and litigation payable, etc. Prior to 
the implementation of GASB Statement No. 65, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, were 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Subsequently, the costs are expensed as incurred. 

Fund Balance Classifications and Net Position  
Fund balances are reported under the following fund balance classifications: 

Non-spendable Includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in spendable 
forrn or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted 

Committed 

Includes amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are externally imposed 
by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due to constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation. 

Includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints that 
are internally imposed by the government through formal action of the Town Council and 
does not lapse at year-end. 

Assigned Includes amounts that are constrained by the Council's intent to be used for specific 
purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed. 

Unassigned Includes amounts that have not been assigned to other funds and that have not been 
restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund. Negative 
fund balances in other governmental filnds can also be classified as unassigned. 

The Town has a general policy to first use restricted resources for expenditures incurred for which both restricted 
and unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) resources are available. When expenditures are incurred 
for which only unrestricted resources are available, the general policy of the Town is to use committed resources 
first, followed by assigned, and then unassigned. The use of restricted/committed resources may be deferred based 
on a review of the specific transaction. 

18 



TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Fund Balance Classifications and Net Positiou (Coutinued)  
The difference between assets and liabilities is "net position'.  on the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary 
fund statements. Net position is segregated into three categories on the government-wide statement of net position: 

Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets net 
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, 
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of 
those assets. 

Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) 
extenial groups, such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislations. The Town first 
uses restricted net position for expenses incurred when both restricted and unrestricted net 
position are available for use. The use of restricted net position may be deferred based on a review 
of the specific transaction. 

Unrestricted net position — The balance of net position that does not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets." 

Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation of the govenunent-wide statements to the 
governmental fund financial statements. This reconciliation is necessary to bring the financial statements from the 
current financial resources measurement focus and modified accnial basis of accounting to the economic 
measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting. Major items included in the reconciliation are capital 
assets, inventories and prepaids, long-terin debt, accrued interest, long-term liabilities, and deferred revenue, 
which are shown on the government-wide but not the governmental fund statements. 

Budgets 
The Town of Lake Providence ( Mayor and Council) uses the following budget practices: 

Prior to June 30, the Town Clerk submits to the Mayor and Board Members a proposed operating budget 
for the fiscal year coininencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures 
and the means of financing them for the upcoming year. The budget is subinitted in summary form. In 
addition, more detailed line-item budgets are included for administrative control. The level of control for 
the detailed budgets is at the department head/function level. 

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comment. 

During the month of June, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General 
Fund. 

Budgets are adopted on the modified accrual basis. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Budgets (Continued) 

Appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

The Mayor and Board may authorize supplemental appropriations during the year. 

Use of estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town's deposits may not be returned to it. 
The Town's policy to ensure that there is no exposure to this risk is to require each financial institution to pledge 
its own securities to cover any amount in excess of Federal Depository Insurance Coverage. The policy is not a 
formal written policy. Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank 
to advertise and sell the pledged securities within ten days of being notified by the Town that the fiscal agent bank 
has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 

At June 30, 2024, the Town has cash and cash equivalents (book balances), as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents: 
Demand deposits $ 762,326 
Time deposits 650,167 
Other 300  

Total 1,412,793  
Cash and cash equivalents — restricted: 

Demand deposits 122,057  
Total $ 1,534,850 

These deposits are stated at cost which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank 
balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance, or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. 
The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount 
on deposit with the fiscal agent. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 

These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is 
mutually acceptable to both parties. As of June 30, 2024, the Town's bank balances were exposed to custodial 
credit risk as follows: 

Insured by FDIC $ 895,795 

Uninsured and uncollateralized 

 

Collateralized by pled,ged securities not in the Town's name 673,916 

Total balances exposed to custodial credit risk 673,916 

Total bank balances 1,569,711 

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES 

The following is a summary of receivables at June 30, 2024: 

Receivables: 

General Utility Total 

   

Taxes $ 35,708 $ 17.580 $ 53,288 

Intergovernmental 

 

10,500 10,500 

Accounts and otlier 1,552 590,152 591,704 

Gross receivables 37,260 618,232 655,492 

Less allowance for 

uncollectibles 

 

(389,518) (389,518) 

Net total receivables $ 37,260 5228,714 $ 265,974 

[The remainder qf this page is intentiomilly blank.] 



TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

A schedule of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2024, follows: 

Gov e rnme ntal activitie s : 
Capital as s ets not being depre ciate d: 

Beginning 
B alance Incre as e s Decreases 

Ending 
B alanc e 

   

Land $ 218,340 $ 218,340 
Construction in progress 

 

45,190 45,190 
Total capital assets 

not being depreciated 218,340 45,190 263,530 

Capital as s ets being de pre ciate d: 

   

Buildings 778,257 

 

778,257 
Building improvements 908,569 

 

908,569 
Infrastructure 5,248,713 

 

5,248,713 
Furniture and equipment 384,236 

 

384,236 
Vehicles 733,420 25,597 759,017 
Right of use asset - machinery and equipment 

 

134,092 134,092 
Total capital assets 

being depreciated 8,053,195 159,689 8,212,884 

Le s s accumulate d de pre ciation for: 

   

Buildings 376,819 

 

376,819 
Building improvements 513,462 18,345 531,807 
Infrastructure 2,684,251 35,855 2,720,106 
Furniture and equipment 353,239 125,452 478,691 
Other improvements 

 

7,274 7,274 
Vehicles 729,253 1,853 731,106 
Right of use asset - machinery and equipment 

 

20,161 20,161 
Total accumulated depreciation and amortization 4,657,024 208,940 4,865,964 
Total capital assets 

being depreciated and amortization 3,396,171 (49,251) 3,346,920 

Governmental activities, 
capital assets, net S 3,614,511 S (4,061) 3,610,450 



TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Business-type activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Beginning 

Balance Increases 

Ending 

Decreases Balance 

    

Land 61,545 $ 

 

$ 61,545 

Constniction ni progress 

  

238,945 238,945 

Total capital assets 

not being depreciated 61,545 

 

238.945 300.490 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

    

Buildings 148,905 

  

- 148.905 

Building improvements 119,689 

  

- 119.689 

lnfrastnicture 11.511.685 

  

- 11,511,685 

Furniture and equipment 309.008 

  

- 309,008 

Vehicles 365,493 

 

42.360 - 4-07.853 

Riuht of use asset - machinery and equipment 

  

108.773 - 108.773 

Total capital assets 

   

- 

being depreciated 12.454.780 

 

151,133 - 12,605,913 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

    

Buiklnigs 95,486 

 

2,730 - 98,216 

Buiklnig unprovements 23,689 

 

4,800 - 28,489 

Infrastructure 6,579,409 

 

287,917 - 6,8(i7,326 

Furniture and equipment 300,969 

 

797 - 301.766 

Vehicles 361,160 

 

6.373 - 367.533 

Right of use asset - machinery and equipment - 

  

- 

Total accumulated depreciation and amortization 7360_713 

 

302,(i17 - 7,663,33(1 

Total capital assets 

being depreciated and amortization 5,094,067 

 

( 151.484) - 4.942.583 

Business-type activities - total, 

capital assets. net $ 5_155_612 

 

87,461 - $ 5,243,073 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged as follows: 
Depreciation 

Governmental activities: 

General government 

Public safety 

Highways and streets 

Culture and recreation 

Total 

$ 28,850 

5,019 

135,978 

18,932 

$ 188,779 
  

Business-type activities: 

Sanitation $ 117,119 

Utility 185,498 

Total $ 302,617 

Amortization 

Governmental activities: 
Highways and streets $ 20,161 

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 

As of June 30, 2024, the Utility Fund owed the General Fund $77,000. Balances are due to electronic transfers 
from grantors, bills paid by other funds, or errors. 

Interfund transfers during the year ended June 30, 2024, were as follows: 

Trans fers out 

 

General Utility Total 

General $ - $ 344,000 $ 344,000 
Capital Projects 25,780 

 

25,780 

Total $25,780 $ 344,000 $ 369,780 

Transfers are used to move unrestricted revenues to finance various programs that the Town must account for in 
other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching 
funds for various grant projects. In addition, transfers included amounts transferred for reserve fund requirements 
for revenue bonds. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

Bonds payable at June 30, 2024, are comprised of the following: 

USDA Community Center Project Bond: 5355,000 Public 
Improvement Bonds, Series 2008, dated October 23, 2009, 
payable in monthly installments of Sl,541 comrnencing November 
23, 2009, through October 23, 2049: interest payable at a rate of 
4.25"A",. The General Fund services this debt. S 285,908 

  

USI)A Utility Revenue Bond: 53,288,000 Utility Revenue Bond, 
Series 2003, dated September 11, 2003, payable in monthly 
installments of Sl4,402 beginning October 11, 2004, and ending 
September 11, 2043, including interest at 4.25%. The Utility 
Enterprise Fund services this debt. $2,266,573   

[The remainder of this page is intentionally blank.] 



TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) 

The annual requirements to amortize all certificates of indebtedness outstanding at June 30, 2024, are as follows: 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 

Community Center - Public 
Improvement Bonds, Series Utitlity Revenue Bonds, 

Year Ended 2008 Series 2003 

June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2025 6,461 $ 12,027 77,980 94,843 

2026 6,741 11,747 81,360 91,464 

2027 7,033 11,455 84,886 87,938 

2028 7,338 11,150 88,564 84,259 

2029 7,656 10,832 92,403 80,421 

2030-2034 43,554 48,888 525,670 338,450 

2035-2039 53,846 38,596 649,886 214,234 

2040-2044 66,570 25,872 665,824 58,897 

2045-2049 86,709 10,172 

  

Total $ 285,908 $ 180,739 $2,266,573 $1,050,506 

Long-terrn obligation activity for the year ended June 30, 2024, was as follows: 

 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Due Within 
One Year 

Governmental activities: 

     

Public hnprovements Bonds, Series 2008 $ 292,114 $ - S ((i,206) $ 285,908 $ 6,461 

Capital lease(s) 149,924 134,092 (144,888) 139,128 86,300 

Compensated absences 10,760 6,409 

 

17,169 - 

Net Pension Liability - MERS 141,119 158 

 

141,277 

 

Governmental actiyity long-term liabilities $ 593,917 $140,659 $(151,094) 583,482 $ 92,761 

Business-type activities: 

     

Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 $2,341,436 $ - $ (74,863) $2,266,573 $ 77,980 

Capital lease(s) 165,883 108,773 (165,882) 1(18,774 52,819 

Compensated absences 5,828 7270 

 

8,048 

 

Net Pension Liability - MERS 106,998 24,207 

 

131,205 - 

Business-type activity long-term liabilities $2,620,145 $135,200 $(24(1,745) $2,514,600 $ 130,799 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 7 — RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) 

Plan Description 

The Town of Lake Providence contributes to the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) 
which is a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan. The System is composed of two distinct 
plans, Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit provisions. A11 employees of the municipality are 
members of Plan B. 

All permanent employees working at least 35 hours per week who are not covered by another pension plan and 
are paid wholly or in part from municipal funds and all elected rnunicipal officials are eligible to participate in the 
System. 

Any member of Plan B who was hired before January 1, 2013, can retire providing the member meets on of the 
following criteria: 

1. Any age with 30 years of creditable service. 
2. Age 60 with a minimum of ten or more years of creditable service. 
3. Any age with ten years of creditable service eligible for disability benefits. 
4. Survivor's benefits require five years creditable service at death of member. 

Eligibility for retirement for Plan B members hired on or after January I, 2013, is as follows: 

1. Age 67 with seven or more years of creditable service. 
2. Age 62 with ten or more years of creditable service. 
3. Age 55 with thirty or more years of creditable service. 
4. Any age with twenty-five years of creditable service, exclusive of military service and unused side leave. 

However, any member retiring under this subsection shall have their benefit actuarially reduced from the 
earliest age of which the member would be entitled to a vested deferred benefit under any provision of this 
section if the member had continued in service to that age. 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement shall consist of an amount equal to 2% of the employee's final 
compensation multiplied by his or her years of creditable service. However, under certain conditions as outlined 
in the statutes, the benefits are lirnited to specified arnounts. The System also provides death and disability 
benefits. Benefits are established or amended by state statute. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the System. The report may be obtained by writing to the Municipal Employees 
Retirement Systern of Louisiana, 7937 Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809, or by calling (225) 
925-4810, or by visiting the System's website wi.twinerslo.com. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) (Continued) 

Contributions 

According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined each year. For 
the year ended June 30, 2024, the actual employer contribution rate was 15.50% for Plan B, actuarially determined 
as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned 
by employees during the year, with an additional arnount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. In accordance 
with state statute, the System receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing funds. These additional sources 
of incorne are used as ernployer contributions and are considered support from non-employer contributing entities 
but are not considered special funding situations. 

Under Plan B, members are required by state statute to contribute 5.00% of their annual covered salary. The 
contributions are deducted from the employee's wages or salary and remitted by the Town of Lake Providence to 
the Systein monthly. The Town of Lake Providence's contributions to the Systern under Plan B for the year ending 
June 30, 2024, were $57,989. 

NOTE 8 - LEASES 

In accordance with its accounting policy for leases and pursuant to adoption of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, 
the Town records a liability for the present value of lease payments over the lease terrn for those agreements 
meeting the capitalization threshold set forth in footnote 1. As of June 30, 2024, lease agreements are primarily 
for vehicles and equipment with two-year terms. The combined lease liability of $247,900, is allocated between 
governrnental activities and business-type activities. In determining the present values, an average discount rate 
of 4.55% was applied, representing the Town's estimated incremental borrowing rate for such vehicles and 
equipment. The recorded value of the right-to-use assets as of the end of the current fiscal year was $242,865 and 
accumulated amortization of these assets was $20,161. The lease liability future principal and interest components 
of the lease payments as ofJune 30,2024, are as follows: 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities  

Vehcile/Equipment Vehcile/Equipment 
Year Ended Lease(s) Lease(s) 

.June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2025 $ 86,300 $11,653 $ 52,819 $ 3,536 

2026 5"),828 5,706 55,955 10,400 

Total S 139,128 $17,359 S 108,774 $23,936 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 9 - ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS 

Certain employees in the Town's police department receive supplemental pay from the State of Louisiana. In 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 24, the Town has recorded revenues and expenditures for these payments 
in the General Fund. Revenues under this arrangement totaled $28,800. The related expenditures of $28,800 are 
included in public safety expenditures in the General Fund. 

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Town operates water and sewer treatment plants. These operations pose a liigh risk for environmental 
liabilities. The Town is required to have EPA permits for wastewater. The Town relies on the EPA for periodic 
testing and inspections to help identify environmental liabilities or contingencies. The Town contracts with a 
professional wastewater management company to ensure compliance with the EPA regulations. 

On March 17, 2016, the Board approved a cooperative endeavor agreement with the East Carroll Parish Police 
Jury which provides for cooperation relative to cleaning up debris, trash, limbs, roads, condemned property, and 
other ruins in the Towii and relative to the maintenance of roads, ditches and drainage within the Town. 

At June 30, 2024, the Town was involved in litigation. However, based on consultation with legal counsel, 
management estimates there to be no losses. 

NOTE 11 — RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss relating to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors 
and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. These risks are covered by commercial insurance 
purchased from independent third parties. 

NOTE 12 - STEWARDSHIP 

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the following fund's total expenditures and other uses exceeded final budgeted 
amounts as follows: 

Final Unfavorable 

Fund Budget Budget Actual Variance 

General $1,308,583 $1,367,404 $1,381,533 $ (14,129) 

29 



TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 13 - NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences was issued June 2022. The unified recognition and 
measurement model in this Statement will result in a liability for compensated absences that more appropriately 
reflects when a government incurs an obligation. In addition, the model can be applied consistently to any type of 
compensated absence and will eliminate potential comparability issues between governments that offer different 
types of leave. The model also will result in a more robust estimate of the amount of compensated absences that 
a government will pay or settle, which will enhance the relevance and reliability of information about the liability 
for compensated absences. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged. 

GASB Statement No. 102, Ccrtain Risk Disclosures was issued December 2023. The objective of this Statement 
is to provide users of government financial statements with essential information about risks related to a 
overnment's vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints. This Statement defines a concentration 

as a lack of diversity related to an aspect of a significant inflow of resources or outflow of resources. A constraint 
is a limitation imposed on a government by an external party or by fonnal action of the government's highest level 
of decision-making authority. Concentrations and constraints may limit a government's ability to acquire 
resources or control spending. This Statement requires a government to assess whether a concentration or 
constraint makes the primary government reporting unit or other reporting units that report a liability for revenue 
debt vulnerable to the risk of a substantial impact. Additionally, this Statement requires a government to assess 
whether an event or events associated with a concentration or constraint that could cause the substantial impact 
have occurred, have begun to occur, or are more likely than not to begin to occur within 12 months of the date the 
financial statements are issued. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after 
June 15, 2024, and all reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged. 

GASB Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements was issued April 2024. The objective of this 
Statement is to improve key components of the financial reporting model to enhance its effectiveness in providing 
information that is essential for decision making and assessing a govemment's accountability. This Statement also 
addresses certain application issues. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2025, and all reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged. 

Statement No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets, was issued September 2024. The objective of this 
Statement is to provide users of government financial statements with essential information about certain types of 
capital assets. This Statement requires certain types of capital assets to be disclosed separately in the capital assets 
note disclosures required by Statement 34. Lease assets recognized in accordance with Statement No. 87, Leases, 
and intangible right-to-use assets recognized in accordance with Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-
Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements, should be disclosed separately by major class of 
underlying asset in the capital as-sets note disclosures. Subscription assets recognized in accordance with 
Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology AtTangements, also should be separately 
disclosed. In addition, this Statement requires intangible assets other than those three types to be disclosed 
separately by major class. This Statement also requires additional disclosures for capital assets held for sale. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2025, and all reporting periods 
thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 14 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

Managernent identified several items occurring in a prior year that were presented incorrectly. These iterns 
included interest on late remittance of payroll taxes, the receipt of past due utility payments previously expensed 
as bad debts, and adjustments to lease liabilities previously booked including the price of equipment with no 
intention to purchase. The adjustments affected the beginning fund balance in two funds and beginning net 
position for both governmental activities and business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The following provides a summary of the adjustments to net position as ofJune 30, 2023, in the government-wide 
financial staternents: 

Begilmthg Beginning 

Balance, as Prior Period Bah-ince, as 

Previously Stated Adjustment Restated  

Governmental Activities $ 4,108,317 75,647 4,183,964 

Business-Type Activities 3,385,287 $ 103,325 3,488,612 

Fund Financial Statements 

The following provides a summary of the adjustments to fund balances as of June 30, 2023, in the fund financial 
statements: 

Beginning Begilining 

Balance, as Prior Period Balance, as 

Previously Stated Adjustment Restated  

General Fund S 865.080 $ (14.146) 850,934 

Utility Fund $ 3.385.287 $ 103.325 3,488,612 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 

LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

    

Variance 

Budgeted Amounts 

 

with 

Original Final Actual Final Budget 

Revenues: 

  

Taxes: 

  

Ad valorem $ 247,000 $ 251,125 $ 251,168 $ 43 

Sales and use 360,500 320,000 319,278 (722) 

Other taxes: 

  

Franchise taxes 113,300 87,900 85,393 (2,507) 

Licenses and permits 82,800 125,705 129,203 3,498 

Intergovernmental funds: 

  

State government grants 63,800 52,800 52,796 (4) 

State government shared revenue 25,850 21,886 22,273 387 

State government payments in lieu 25,500 27,255 27,255 - 

Charges for services 2,800 460 357 (103) 

Fines and forfeitures 90,000 55,000 57,302 2,302 

Investment earnings 2,000 8,650 11,268 2,618 

Rents and royaliies 15,900 17,468 17,268 (200) 

Other revenues 30,800 47,026 46,942 (84) 
Total revenues 1,060,250 1,015,275 1,020,503 5,228 

Expenditures: 

  

Current: 

  

General government: 425,090 375,612 357,859 (17,753) 

Public safety 513,405 581,313 580,587 (726) 

Highways and streets 253,550 279,163 289,576 10,413 

Cemeteries 3,500 850 850 - 

Health and welfare 2,300 90 95 5 

Culture and recreation 18,400 17,262 17,865 603 

Economic development 

  

Debt service 92,338 88,264 83,324 (4,940) 

Capital outlay - 2,850 25,597 22,747 

Total expenditures 1,308,583 1,345,404 1,355,753 10,349 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures (248,333) (330,129) (335,250) (5,121) 

Other sources (uses): 

  

Operating transfers in 255,000 344,000 344,000 

 

Proceeds from the sale of assets - 15,075 15,075 - 

Operating transfers out - (22,000) (25,780) (3,780) 

Total other sources (uses) 255,000 337,075 333,295 (3,780) 

Net change in fund balances 6,667 6,946 (1,955) (8,901) 

Fund balances at beginning of year 969,613 865,080 850,934 (14,146) 

Fund balance s at e nd of ye ar $ 976,280 $ 872,026 $ 848,979 $ (23,047) 

Other sources (uses) per budget statement $ 333,295 

 

Proceeds from the issues of leases 134,092 

 

Revenues per Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance $ 467,387 

 

Expenditures per budget statement above $ 1,355,753 

 

Right of use assets acquired 134,092 

 

Expenditures per Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance $ 1,489,845 

 

Note: This schedule is prepared on the modified accrual basis. 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES 



TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, REIMBURSEMENTS 
AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO OR ON BEHALF OF AGENCY HEAD 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

Robert Amacker, Mayor 
Salary $ 46,585 
Benefits: 

 

Retirement 8,815 

 

$ 55,400 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION TO TOWN COUNCIL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

Catherine Middlebrook $ 8,854 
Jason Condrey 8,866 
Karl Magee, Mayor Pro Tem 9,246 
Patricia Roberson 8,772 
Sucletter Brown "Crye" 8,768 
Total $ 44.506 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF ALDERMEN 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

Name 
Catherine Middlebrook 

Jason Condrey 
Karl Magee, Mayor Pro Tem 
Patricia Roberson 
Sucletter Brown "Crye" 

Address 
1102 Lake Street, Lake Providence, LA 71254 

468 N. Hood Street, Lake Providence, LA 71254 
423 Schneider Lane, Lake Providence, LA 71254 
1212 Davis Street, Lake Providence, LA 71254 
1607 First Street, Lake Providence, LA 71254 

Phone  
206-257-8566 
318-282-8976 
318-282-1373 
318-282-7589 
318-418-3403 
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Town of Lake Providence 

Justice System Funding Schedule - Collecting/Disbursing Entity 

As Required by Act 87 of the 2020 Regular Legislative Session 

FYE 6/30/2024 

 

First Six 
Month 
Period 
Ended 

Second Six 
Month 
Period 
Ended 

Cash Basis Presentation 12/31/2023 6/30/2024 

Beginning Balance of Amounts Collected (i.e. cash on hand) 

    

Add: Collections 

  

Criminal Fines - Other 12,977 44,305 

Subtotal Collections 

  

12,977 44,305 

Less: Disbursements To Governments & Nonprofits: (Must include one agency name and 
one collection type on each line and may require multiple lines for the same agency if more 
than one collection type is applicable. Additional rows may be added as necessary.) 

  

Town of Lake Providence, Criminal Fines - Other 9,819 35,626 
DHH THSCI / CRIME VICTIMS FUND 300 1,612 
Louisiana Supreme Court 72 296 
Treasurer, State of Louisiana- CMIS 198 417 
LA Commission on Law Enforcement 598 34 
North Louisiana Criminalistics Laboratory Commission 2,010 6,320 

Subtotal Disbursements/Retainage 12,997 44,305 

Total: Ending Balance of Amounts Collected but not Disbursed/Retained (i.e. cash on hand) 
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OTHER REPORTS 



B8,s BOSCH & 
STATHAM 
Certified Public Accountants  

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Aldermen and 
The Honorable Robert Amacker, Jr., Mayor 

Town of Lake Providence 
Lake Providence, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide, the fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, and each major ftmd, of the Town of Lake Providence (the Town), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements and have 
issued our report thereon dated December 30, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the fmancial statements, we considered the Town's intemal control over fmancial 
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose 
of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Town's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, 
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely 
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, 
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given 
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town's fmancial statements are free from material misstatement, 
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the fmancial statements. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of fmdings and responses as items 
2024-001 and 2024-002. 

Melissa Bosch, CPA (318) 475-1987 • Michael Statham, CPA (318) 355-9943 
Post Office Box 2377, Ruston, Louisiana 71273-2377 



Town of Lake Providence 
Lake Providence, Louisiana 

Independent Auditor's Report - GAGAS 
June 30, 2024 

The Town's Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Town's response to the findings 
identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses. the Town's response was not 
subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the fmancial statements and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on the response. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. Although the 
intended use of this report may be limited, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, it is issued by the Louisiana Legislative 
Auditor as a public document. 

BOSCH & STATHAM, LLC 

Bosch & Statham, LEC 

Ruston, Louisiana 

December 30, 2024 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

I. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial stateinents of the Town of Lake 
Providence. Louisiana. were prepared in accordance with GAAP. 

2. No material weaknesses are reported in the Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
and On Compliance and Other Matters Based on An Audit of Financial Statements Perfonned in Accordance with 
Govemnieni Auditing Standards. 

3. Two instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the Town of Lake Providence, Louisiana. which 
would be required to be reported in accordance with Garcrnincni Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit. 

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT 

2024-001 Officers Not Post Certified 

Year First Reported  
2024 

Type  
Compliance 

Criteria  
Louisiana Revised Statute 40:2405 requires: 

"A.(I) Except as othenvise provided in Paragraph (2) of this Subsection. any person who begins employinent as a peace 
officer in Louisiana subsequent to Jamiary I. 1986. must successfully coinplete a certified training program approved by the 
council and successfully pass a council-approved comprehensive exainination within one calendar year from the date of initial 
einployment. The one-year period in which a peace officer is required to coinplete a certified training program approved by 
the council and successfully pass a council-approved comprehensive exainination is not internipted if the peace officer leaves 
the employing agency to be einployed as a peace officer in another agency in Louisiana. Any person who fails to coinply 
with this requireinent shall be prohibited from exercising the authority of a peace officer: however. such persons shall not be 
prohibited from perfonning administrative duties." 

Condition  
Three employees, who are not POST certified. were paid as police officers during the year ended June 30. 2024. 

Cause  
It appears that the Chief of Police did not ensure that his officers were compliant with state law. 

Effect 
It appears that the three officers in question have been operating as peace officers without authority under the law. 

Recommendation  
We reconunend that the Chief of Police consult the Town Attorney for guidance on how to bring the Town into 
compliance. 

Management's Response  
See Management's Corrective Action Plan. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

2024-002 Community Drinking Water Infrastructure Sustainability Act 

Year First Reported 
2024 

Type 
Compliance 

Criteria  
Per the LLA's Audit Risk Alert #51: 

"Act 98 of the 2021 Regular Legislative Session amended and reenacted R.S. 40:5.9(C)(4) and (5), enacted R.S. 40:5.9(C)(6), 
5.9.1, and 5.9.2, and repealed R.S. 36:259(B)(9) and R.S. 40:4.13 relative to public drinking water to create and provide for 
the Community Drinking Water Infrastructure Sustainability Act. 

R.S. 40:5.9.1(C) states "The Louisiana Department of Health, referred to in this Section as the "department", shall provide 
for a statewide system of accountability for community water systems and establish a letter grade schedule reflective of 
community water system quality, performance, and sustainability..." In January 2023, preliminary system grades were 
released by the Louisiana Department of Health with fmal grades set to be released in May of 2023. R.S. 40:5.9.1(E)(1) 
further states "Any community water system that receives a letter grade of "D" or "F" shall be considered operationally 
unacceptable..." 

Condition  
The Town's water system received a grade of "F". The Town transferred $344,000 from the Utility Fund to the General Fund 
during the year ended June 30, 2024. 

Cause 
See the grading report: 

a ualIMIENT OF HEALTH 2023 Water Grade Details 
Engfne,ring LAKE PROVIDENCE WATER SYSTEM 

Standard 
Standard 

Maximum 
Point 

Deductions 
Detailed Assessment of Standards 

System 
Deductions 

Federal Water 
Quality 

-30 
5 each Maximum contaminant level violations 0 

- 10 5 each Treatment technique violations for Lead and Copper Rule 0 

10 Is the system non-compliant with an administrative order? Yes 

State Water 
Quality 

-10 

1 each Chlorine violations 3 

- 3 5 Does the water system have an operator? Yes 
5 each Water outages and/or boil notices 0 

Financial 1 

Sustainability 
-

 10 

5 Did the system submit an acceptable rate study or implement an adequate rate? No 

- 5 
5 Did the water system submit an acceptable audit? Yes 

10 Is the system under a fiscal administrator for poor financial management practices? No 

5 Are there other negative circumstances that affect fiscal control of the water system? No 
Operations & 
Maintenance 

Infrastructure 

Customer 
Satisfaction 

Secondary 
Contaminants 

-15 3 each Unresolved significant deficiencies 0 - 0 

-20 5 each Unresolved significant deficiencies 3 - 15 

-10 
1 each Valid water complaints reported 10 

- ' 
10 10 Did the system submit a water complaint log? No 

-5 5 Manganese and/or iron level(s) over the secondary maximum contaminant level(s) Yes 

 

Bonus 4-10 5 each 
Asset management plan, storage or well assessment & maintenance plan, participation 
in capacity development or management training 

 

4- 5 

rThe points deducted exceeded the maximum allowable deductions for the Standard. 
Total Deductions + Bonus 

Scare 

-43 

57/ 100 = 
57% 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

Effect 
Per the LLA Audit Risk Alert: 

"R.S. 40:5.9.1(C) states "The Louisiana Department of Health, referred to in this Section as the "department", shall provide 
for a statewide system of accountability for community water systems and establish a letter grade schedule reflective of 
community water systern quality, performance. and sustainability..." In January 2023. preliminary system grades were 
released by the Louisiana Department of Health with final grades set to be released in May of 2023. R.S. 40:5.9.1(E)(1) 
further states "Any community water system that receives a letter grade of "D" or "F" shall be considered operationally 
unacceptable..." 

The Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) encourages all CPAs on LLA's approved list who work with community water 
systems or local govermnents which operate community water systems to carefully read Act 98 of the 2021 Regular 
Legislative Session in its entirety. Particular attention should be considered as it relates to R.S. 40:5.9.1(E)(1)(c). which tnay 
impose a prohibition on any "D" or "F" grade system related to "incurring any additional debt for anything not directly related 
to the improvement and sustainability of the community drinking water system..." and R.S. 40:5.9.1(F) which prohibits the 
spending of "any money raised through payments tnade by customers for access to water or any other water systetn revenue" 
in "D" and "F" grade systems for "any item. debt payment. or " 

Recommendation  
We identified this finding while we were in the process of submitting the Town's report to the LLA. As it was a holiday, we 
could not contact management to get a response. Not wanting to delay the submission of the Town's report, we added the 
finding. 

Manaaernent's Response 
See Reconunendation. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVIDENCE 
LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT 

2023-001 Inadequate Controls over Financial Reporting 

The finding is resolved. 

2023-002 Failed to Properly File and Remit Payroll Taxes 

The finding is resolved. 

2023-003 Questionable Expenditures 

The finding is resolved. 

2023-004 Minutes not Properly Recorded or Published 

The finding is resolved. 

2023-005 Debt Reserve Requirements Not Met 

The finding is resolved. 
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The Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) is considered to be a specified party to the Statewide 
Agreed-Upon Procedures (AUPs) and acknowledges that the procedures performed are 
appropriate for their purposes by their acceptance of the standard audit engagement approval 
forms. In connection with your engagement to apply agreed-upon procedures to certain control 
and compliance (C/C) areas identified in the LLA's statewide agreed-upon procedures (AUPs), 
for the fiscal period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, we confirm, to the best of our knowledge 
and belief, the following representations made to you during your engagement. 

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the C/C areas identified in the SAUPs, 
including written policies and procedures; board or finance committee; bank 
reconciliations; collections; non-payroll disbursements; credit/debit/fuel/purchasing cards; 
travel and travel-related expense reimbursement; contracts; payroll and personnel; ethics; 
debt service; fraud notice; information technology disaster recovery/business continuity; 
prevention of sexual harassment; and other areas (should be customized bv entitv, as 
applicable). 

Yes 0 No O 

2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance. 

Yes 0 No O 

3. For the fiscal period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, we have performed an 
evaluation of our compliance with the best practices criteria presented in the statewide 
AUPs. 

Yes N No O 

4. We are responsible for selecting the criteria and procedures and for determining that such 
criteria and procedures are appropriate for our purposes. 
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Yes 0 No C 

5. We have provided you with access to all records that we believe are relevant to the C/C 
areas and the statewide AUPs. 

Yes 0 No O 

6. We have disclosed to you all known matters contradicting the results of the procedures 
performed in C/C areas. 

Yes 0 No ❑ 

7. We have disclosed to you any known noncompliance with laws or regulations affecting the 
statewide AUPs occurring during the period of July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 and 
between June 30, 2024, and December 23, 2024, including any actual, suspected, or 
alleged fraud. 

Yes 0 No O 

8. We have disclosed to you any communications from regulatory agencies, internal auditors, 
other independent practitioners or consultants, and others affecting the C/C areas, including 
communications received between June 30, 2024, and December 23, 2024. 

Yes El No O 

9. We represent that the listing of bank accounts for the fiscal period that we provided to you 
is complete. We also represent that we have identified and disclosed to you our main 
operating account. 

Yes D No D 

10. We represent that the listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period that we provided to you is 
complete. 

Yes 0 No 0 

11. We represent that the listing of collection locations for the fiscal period that we provided 
to you is complete. 

Yes EJ No O 

12. We represent that the listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period that 
we provided to you is complete. 

Last Updated: January 2024 
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Yes 0 No ❑ 

13. We represent that the non-payroll disbursement transaction population for each location 
that processes payments for the fiscal period that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes 0 No ❑ 

14. We represent that the listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and 
purchase (P) cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names 
of the persons who maintained possession of the cards, that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes 0 No ❑ 

15. We represent that the listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during 
the fiscal period that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes El No ❑ 

16. We represent that the listing of all agreements/contracts (or active vendors) for professional 
services, materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or 
renewed during the fiscal period that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes 0 No ❑ 

17. We represent that the listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal 
period that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes 0 No ❑ 

18. We represent that the listing of employees/officials that received termination payments 
during the fiscal period that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes 181 No ❑ 

19. We represent that the employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, retirement 
contributions, health insurance premiums, and workers' compensation premiums have 
been paid, and associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines during the fiscal 
period. 

Yes 0 No ❑ 

20. We represent that the listing of bonds/notes issued during the fiscal period that we provided 
to you is complete. 
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Yes 0 No O 

21. We represent that the listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period that 
we provided to you is complete. 

Yes 0 No ❑ 

22. We represent that the listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the 
fiscal period that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes 0 No O 

23. We represent that the listing of computers currently in use and their related locations that 
we provided to you is complete. 

Yes 0 No ❑ 

24. We are not aware of any material misstatements in the C/C areas identified in the statewide 
AUPs. 

Yes 0 No ❑ 

25. We have disclosed to you [list other matters as you have deemed appropriate]. 

Yes 0 No O 

26. We have responded fully to all inquiries made by you during the engagement. 

Yes 0 No ❑ 

27. We have disclosed to you all known events that have occurred subsequent to June 30, 
2024, that would have a material effect on the C/C areas identified in the statewide AUPs, 
or would require adjustment to or modification of the results of the statewide AUPs. 

Yes 0 No O 
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The previous responses have been made to the best of our belief and knowledge. 

Signature 

Title 

Signature 

Title 
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BOSCH & 
STATHAM 
,',_:ertitied Public Accountants 

Independent Accountant's Report 
on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

To the Town of Lake Providence 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by Town of Lake Providence 
(the Town) and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period July 1, 2023, 
through June 30, 2024. The Entity's management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the 
SAUPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of 
Government Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the 
specified users of this report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the 
procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other 
purpose. 

The procedures and related exceptions obtained are described in the attachment to this report: 

1) Written Policies and Procedures 

A. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they address each of 
the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the entity's operations: 

We obtained and inspected the Town's policies and procedures. 

i) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

We noted no exceptions. 

ii) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor list; 
(3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) controls to 
ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) documentation required to be maintained for all 
bids and price quotes. 

We noted no exceptions. 

Melissa Bosch, CPA (318) 475-1987 • Michael Statham, CPA (318) 355-9943 
Post Office Box 2377, Ruston, Louisiana 71273-2377 



TOWN OF LAKE PROVDIENCE 
REPORT ON STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

iii) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

We noted no exceptions. 

iv) Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and 
procedures should include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections for 
each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., periodic confirmation with outside parties, 
reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, 
agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 

The policy did not include management's actions to determine the completeness of 

all collections. 

Exceptions: See above. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan 

v) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and attendance 
records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for employee(s) rate of pay or 
approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

We noted no exceptions. 

vi) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

The policy did not include element (2). 

Exceptions: See above. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan 

vii) Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 

We noted no exceptions. 

viii) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards are to be 
controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers of 
statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

The policy did not include elements (1), (4), and (5). 

Exceptions: See above. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan 

ix) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42:1111-1121, (2) 
actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, 
and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all employees and officials 
were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy. 

The policy did not include any of the required elements. 

Exceptions: See above. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan 
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REPORT ON STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
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x) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

We noted no such policy. 

Exceptions: See above. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan 

xi) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) identification of 
critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location 
isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and software 
patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover operations 
after a critical event. 

We noted no such policy. 

Exceptions: See above. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan 

xii) Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency responsibilities and 
prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

The policy did not include elements (2) and (3). 

Exceptions: See above. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan 

2) Board or Finance Committee 

A. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's enabling 
legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

We obtained the Town's minutes for the fiscal period. 

i) Observe that the board/fmance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency in 
accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent document. 

The council met at least monthly with a quorum. 

ii) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the minutes 
referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, quarterly budget-to-
actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds, and semi-annual budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on all 
special revenue funds. Alternately, for those entities reporting on the nonprofit accounting model, 
observe that the minutes referenced or included financial activity relating to public funds i f those public 
funds comprised more than 10% of the entity's collections during the fiscal period. 

We observed the minutes referenced or included monthly budget- to-actual 

comparisons for all funds, known as "financial statements". 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVDIENCE 
REPORT ON STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

iii) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned fund balance 
in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned fund balance in the prior year 
audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period referenced or 
included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund balance in the general fund. 

We obtained the prior year audit report and observed a positive unrestricted fund 

balance in the all the funds. 

iv) Observe whether the board/fmance committee received written updates of the progress of resolving 
audit finding(s), according to management's corrective action plan at each meeting until the findings 
are considered fully resolved. 

We found no evidence of written updates of the progress of resolving audit findings. 

3) Bank Reconciliations 

A. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating account. 
Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all accounts if less 
than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank 
statement and reconciliation for each selected account, and observe that: 

We obtained a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management 

and management's representation that the listing is complete. Management identified 

the entity's main operating account. We selected the entity's main operating account 

and 4 additional accounts. We selected one month from the fiscal period and obtained 

and inspected the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each selected 

account. 

i) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related statement 
closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged); 

We noted no exceptions. 

ii) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who does not 
handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation within 1 month (e.g., 
initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 

We noted evidence of review with signatures but no dates. 
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iii) Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

We noted no exceptions. 

4) Collections 

A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash) are 
prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or 
all deposit sites if less than 5). 

We obtained a listing of deposit sites and management's representation that the listing 

is complete. There is only 1 site. 

We noted no exceptions. 

B. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation that 
the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e., 5 collection 
locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to employee job 
duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection 
location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

We obtained a listing of collection locations and management's representation that the 

listing is complete. We selected one collection location and obtained the policies and 

procedures. 

i) Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

We noted no exceptions. 

ii) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making bank deposits, 
unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation (e.g., pre-
numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

We noted no exceptions. 

iii) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to the 
general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling 
ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

We noted no exceptions. 

iv) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary 
ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions, are not responsible for collecting cash, unless 
another employee/official verifies the reconciliation. 

We noted no exceptions. 

C. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees who have 
access to cash. Observe the bond or insurance policy for theft was enforced during the fiscal period. 

We obtained a copy of the bonds and insurance policies. We observed that the bonds 

and policies were in force during the fiscal period. 
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TOWN OF LAKE PROVDIENCE 
REPORT ON STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

D. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3A above (select 
the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates randomly selected and randomly 
select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). Alternately, the practitioner may use a 
source document other than bank statements when selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash 
collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book, etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 
deposits and: 

We selected two deposit dates for each bank account selected under procedure #3A. 

We obtained the supporting documentation and noted the following. 

i) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

Receipts for fines and ad valorem taxes are prenumbered, completed by hand and 

issued in paper form. Receipts for payments on utility accounts are computer-

generated. 

ii) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection documentation 
to the deposit slip. 

We noted no exceptions. 

iii) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

We noted no exceptions. 

iv) Observe the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location (within one 
week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit is less than $100 
and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

We noted no exceptions. 

v) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

We noted no exceptions. 
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5) Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases, travel reimbursements, and petty 
cash purchases) 

A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

We obtained a listing of locations that process payments and noted one listed. 

Exceptions: None 

B. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with 
non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee 
job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties), 
and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

For the one location listed, we obtained the policies and procedures and observed the 

fol lowing. 

i) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and placing 
an order/making the purchase. 

We noted no exceptions. 

ii) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

We noted no exceptions. 

iii) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor files, 
unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 

We noted the employee responsible for preparing payments has access to add and 

modify the vendor files within the system. In practice, the employee is not allowed 

to add/modify the vendor files. 

Exceptions: See above. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan 

iv) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed checks 
to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

We noted the employee responsible for preparing payments also mails out payments 

after checks are signed. 

Exceptions: See above. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan 
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v) Only employees/officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement (release) of 
funds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), electronic funds transfer (EFT), wire transfer, 
or some other electronic means. 

E Electronic disbursements are not addressed within the Town's policies. There is 

no set procedure concerning how electronic disbursements are approved and how the 

approval is documented. 

Exceptions: See above. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan 

[Note: Findings related to controls that constrain the legal authority of certain public officials (e.g., mayor 
of a Lawrason Act municipality) should not be reported.] 

C. For each location selected under #5A above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement transaction 
population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's representation that the 
population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, obtain supporting 
documentation for each transaction, and: 

We obtained the population and management's representation that the listing is 

complete. We selected five disbursements and obtained the related documentation. 

i) Observe whether the disbursement matched the related original itemized invoice and supporting 
documentation indicates deliverables included on the invoice were received by the entity. 

We noted two exceptions. 

ii) Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

We noted one exception. 

D. Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations procedure #3A, 
randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic disbursements if less than 
5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved by only those persons authorized to 
disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the entity's policy, and (b) approved by the required number of 
authorized signers per the entity's policy. Note: If no electronic payments were made from the main 
operating account during the month selected the practitioner should select an alternative month and/or 
account for testing that does include electronic disbursements. 

Using the main operating account selected under procedure #3A, we selected the only 

non-payroll-related electronic disbursement shown. We noted no documented approval. 

Exceptions: See above. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan 
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6) Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purchase Cards (Cards) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards (cards) 
for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained possession 
of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 

Management asserted there were no active cards during the fiscal year. 

B. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that were used 
during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each card (for 
a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, and: 

See procedure 6A. 

i) Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and supporting 
documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports for excessive 
fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or electronically approved) by someone other 
than the authorized card holder (those instances requiring such approval that may constrain the legal 
authority of certain public officials, such as the mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality, should not be 
reported); and 

ii) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

C. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under procedure #7B above, excluding fuel 
cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and obtain 
supporting documentation for the transactions (e.g., each card should have 10 transactions subject to 
inspection)17. For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that 
identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) 
documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). For missing receipts, the 
practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and observe whether management had a 
compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement" that is subject to 
increased scrutiny. 

See procedure 6A. 

7) Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly select 5 
reimbursements and obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense documentation of 
each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements 
selected: 

We obtained a listing from management and management's representation it was 

complete. We two expenses that appeared to be travel related. We selected those 

expenses and obtained the related supporting documentation. 
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i) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe the approved reimbursement rate is no more than those rates 
established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration 
(www.gsa.gov). 

Not applicable. 

ii) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe the reimbursement is supported by an original itemized receipt 
that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

We noted no exceptions. 

iii) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose (for 
meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals participating) 
and other documentation required by Written Policies and Procedures procedure #1A(vii); and. 

We noted one exception. 

iv) Observe each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the person 
receiving reimbursement. 

We noted no exceptions. 

8) Contracts 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and 
supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. 
Alternatively, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. Obtain 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if 
less than 5) from the listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and 

We obtained a listing from management and selected two agreements for testing. We 

obtained the selected agreements. 

i) Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., solicited 
quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law; 

We noted neither contract was subject to bid law. 

ii) Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy or law 
(e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter); 

We noted no exceptions. 

iii) If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe that the original contract terms provided for 
such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the contract terms (e.g., if 
approval is required for any amendment, the documented approval); and 

We noted no such amendments. 
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iv) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the supporting 
invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice and related payment agreed 
to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

We noted no exceptions. 

9) Payroll and Personnel 

A. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or officials, obtain related paid 
salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

We obtained a listing from management and management's representation for 

completeness. We selected 5 employees/officials and obtained the personnel files. We 

agreed the paid rate to authorized rate noting no exceptions. 

Exceptions: None 

B. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials selected under 
procedure #9A above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and 

We selected one pay period during the fiscal period and obtained attendance records 

and leave documentation. 

i) Observe all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., vacation, 
sick, compensatory); 

We noted one exception. 

ii) Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or officials; 

We noted two exceptions. 

iii) Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's cumulative 
leave records; and 

We noted no exceptions. 

iv) Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agrees to the authorized salary/pay rate found within 
the personnel file. 

We noted no exceptions. 
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C. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the fiscal period 
and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees or officials and 
obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's termination payment 
calculations and the entity's policy on termination payments. Agree the hours to the employee's or official's 
cumulative leave records, agree the pay rates to the employee's or official's authorized pay rates in the 
employee's or official's personnel files, and agree the termination payment to entity policy. 

We obtained a listing from management and management's representation the listing is 

complete. We selected two employees and obtained the related documentation. We 

noted the check for the first employee tested was not a termination payment but was 

a regular paycheck for actual hours worked. We noted no exceptions for the second 

employee's check tested. 

Exceptions: None 

D. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party payroll related 
amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, garnishments, workers' 
compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms have been filed, by required 
deadlines. 

We obtained management's representation the third-party payroll amounts were paid 

timely and accurately. 

10) Ethics 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A obtain ethics 
documentation from management, and 

Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure 

#9A, we obtained the ethics documentation from management. 

i) Observe whether the documentation demonstrates that each employee/official completed one hour of 
ethics training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:1170; and 

We noted one exception. 

ii) Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates that each employee and 
official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period, as applicable. 

Management asserted no such changes occurred. 

B. Inquire and/or observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by R.S. 42:1170 

We inquired of management and noted a designee had been appointed. 

Exceptions: None 
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11) I)ebt Service 

A. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and management' s 
representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt instruments on the listing, obtain supporting 
documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval was obtained for each debt instrument 
issued as required by Article VII, Section 8 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

We obtained a listing from management and management's representation the listing is 

complete. We noted no exceptions. 

B. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management' s representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, obtain supporting 
documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve balances and payments to 
those required by debt covenants (including contingency funds, short-lived asset funds, or other funds 
required by the debt covenants). 

We obtained a listing from management and management's representation the listing is 

complete. We selected the one bond/note listed and obtained the related documentation. 

We compared the actual reserve balances and payments to the covenants. We noted 

the Contingencies Fund is underfunded and contained payments less than required. We 

noted the Reserve Fund is currently overfunded and does not need to be funded based 

on the requirements. 

Exceptions: See above. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan 

12) Fraud Notice 

A. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and management' s 
representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, obtain supporting 
documentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and 
the district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled as required by R.S. 24:523. 

Management asserted there were no misappropriations during the fiscal year. 

B. Observe that the entity has posted, on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

The town does not appear to own or operate a website. The notice was properly posted 

on the premises. 

Exceptions: None 
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13) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 

A. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and report "We 
performed the procedure and discussed the results with management." 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

i) Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical data (if there 
is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for backing up critical data) and 
observe evidence that such backup (a) occurred within the past week, (b) was not stored on the 
government's local server or network, and (c) was encrypted. 

ii) Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has tested/verified that its backups can 
be restored (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for 
testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the test/verification was successfully 
performed within the past 3 months. 

iii) Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers and observe while management 
demonstrates that the selected computers have current and active antivims software and that the operating 
system and accounting system software in use are currently supported by the vendor. 

B. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) using the list of 
terminated employees obtained in procedure #9C. Observe evidence that the selected terminated employees 
have been removed or disabled from the network. 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

C. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A, obtain 
cybersecurity training documentation from management, and observe that the documentation demonstrates 
that the following employees/officials with access to the agency's information technology assets have 
completed cybersecurity training as required by R.S. 42:1267 . The requirements are as follows: 
• Hired before June 9, 2020 - completed the training; and 
• Hired on or after June 9, 2020 - completed the training within 30 days of initial service or 
employment. 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

14) Prevention of sexual Harassment 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A, obtain sexual 
harassment training documentation from management, and observe that the documentation demonstrates each 
employee/official completed at least one hour of sexual harassment training during the calendar year as 
required by R.S. 42:343. 

We obtained the sexual harassment training documentation for those selected under 

procedure #9A. We noted two exceptions. 
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B. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its website (or in 
a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a website). 

We observed the Town's policy posted in a conspicuous location on the property. 

C. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the report was 
dated on or before February 1, and observe that the report includes the applicable requirements of R.S. 42:344: 

i) Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training requirements; 

ii) Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

iii) Number of complaints which resulted in a fmding that sexual harassment occurred; 

iv) Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted indiscipline or corrective action; 
and 

v) Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

We obtained the report and noted no exceptions. 

We were engaged by the Town of Lake Providence to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted 
our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to and did not conduct 
an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, 
respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or 
conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have 
been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the Town of Lake Providence and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs, 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a 
public document. 

BOSCH & STATHAM, LLC 
Bosch, & Statham 
Ruston, Louisiana 
December 30, 2024 
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Sincerety, 

Town of Lake Providence 
Robert N. Amacker, Jr. 

Mayor 

Lee Ann W. Clement 
Certified Municipal Clerk 

EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT 

201 SPARROW STREET 

LAKE PROVIDENCE, LOUISIANA 71254 

TELEPHONE: 318-559-2288 

FAX: 318-559-3442 

Aldermen: 
Jason Condrey 

Sucletter Brown-Crye 
Patricia Foster Roberson 

Karl Magee 
Catherine Middlebrook 

Attorney: Kenneth 
"Andy" Brister, Jr. 

December 30, 2024 

Bosch & Statham, CPA 

Attention: Mrs. Melissa Bosch, CPA 

Post Office Box 2377 

Ruston, Louisiana 71273-2377 

Re: Town of Lake Providence Financial Statements Audit FY ending 6/30/24 

Corrective Action Plan 

SAUP'S FY Ending June 30, 2024 

Dear Mrs. Bosch: 

In reference to the above, below you wilt find our Corrective Action Plan: 

20244)91- Offieeis_NotRo_sl_certitieri 

Corrective Action Plan: Management will recommend that the Chief of Police consult the Town 

Attorney for guidance on how to bring the Town into compliance. 

SAUP'S FY endingJune 30, 2024 

Response -"We will take the results under advisement and take action as deemed necessary and 

feasible". 

If you need additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me, as I am, 

Robert N. Amacker, Jr. 

Mayor 

Auditor's Note: We added a finding after this plan was submitted to us. 
See the recommendation to 2024-002. 

"This institution is an equal opportunity provider and employer" 
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